FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2014



Contents

	Page
Independent Auditors' Report	1 - 2
Financial Statements	
Statement Of Financial Position	3
Statement Of Activities	4
Statement Of Cash Flows	5
Notes To Financial Statements	6 - 17
Supplemental Information	
Independent Auditors' Report On Supplementary Information	18
Schedule Of Program Services Expenses	19
Schedule Of Management And General Expenses	20
Schedule Of Fundraising Expenses	21



RubinBrown LLP
Certified Public Accountants
& Business Consultants

One North Brentwood Saint Louis, MO 63105

T 314.290.3300 F 314.290.3400

W rubinbrown.com
E info@rubinbrown.com

Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Directors Optimist International Foundation St. Louis, Missouri

Report On The Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Optimist International Foundation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility For The Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Optimist International Foundation as of September 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report On Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Foundation's 2013 financial statements, and our report dated December 4, 2013, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

January 24, 2015

Rulin Brown LLP

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION September 30, 2014

(With Summarized Financial Information As Of September 30, 2013)

Assets

	2014	2013
Current Assets		
Cash	\$ 179,465	\$ 234,251
Promises to give - short term (Note 3)	46,074	50,808
Due from Optimist International Foundation of Canada (Note 9)	16,680	26,680
Promissory note receivable - short term (Note 6)	28,273	28,700
Prepaid expenses and other assets	38,049	40,430
Investments (Note 4)	3,759,252	3,328,397
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies	108,732	114,526
Total Current Assets	4,176,525	3,823,792
Property And Equipment (Note 5)	30,563	30,083
Promissory Note Receivable (Note 6)	558,401	585,789
Promises To Give (Note 3)	12,521	28,638
Beneficial Interest In Perpetual Trust (Note 7)	170,033	154,144
Assets Restricted For Permanent Investment (Note 4)	2,099,908	1,991,821
Total Assets	\$ 7,047,951	\$ 6,614,267
Liabilities And Net Assets		
Current Liabilities		
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 9)	\$ 575,213	\$ 517,290
Contests and scholarships payable:	,	,
Oratorical contest	748,226	775,726
CCDHH contest	354,823	342,689
Essay contest	168,650	160,600
Due to Optimist International (Note 9)	164,005	259,254
Due to Member Clubs (Note 9)	1,465,916	1,288,750
Grants payable	31,668	24,634
Gift annuities payable (Note 10)	255,639	284,362
Total Current Liabilities	3,764,140	3,653,305
Net Assets		
Unrestricted (Note 8)	(4,492)	2,784
Temporarily restricted (Note 8)	1,018,362	812,213
Permanently restricted (Note 8)	2,269,941	2,145,965
Total Net Assets	3,283,811	2,960,962
Total Liabilities And Net Assets	\$ 7,047,951	\$ 6,614,267

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended September 30, 2014 (With Summarized Financial Information For The Year Ended September 30, 2013)

		201	4		2013
		Temporarily	Permanently		
	Unrestricted	Restricted	Restricted	Total	Total
Support, Revenues And Gains (Losses)					
Public Support:					
Contributions	\$ 613,065	\$ 117,414	\$ —	\$ 730,479	\$ 652,071
Endowments	_	_	108,087	108,087	214,121
Club grant program (Note 9)	_	297,750	_	297,750	330,776
Contributions restricted for scholarships	_	37,553	_	37,553	30,852
Other	6,734	2,970		9,704	4,482
Total Public Support	619,799	455,687	108,087	1,183,573	1,232,302
Revenues And Gains (Losses)					
Interest and dividends (Note 6)	81,856	49,593	_	131,449	141,325
Unrealized and realized gain on investments					
(Note 4)	296,065	179,374	_	475,439	613,779
Change in value of charitable gift annuities and					
beneficial interest in perpetual trust (Notes					
7 and 10)	(14,406)	_	15,889	1,483	(12,823)
Other gains (losses)	(5,269)	_	10,000	(5,269)	(285)
Total Revenues And Gains (Losses)	358,246	228,967	15,889	603,102	741,996
Net assets released from restrictions (Note 8)	478,505	(478,505)			
Total Support, Revenues					
And Gains (Losses)	1,456,550	206,149	123,976	1,786,675	1,974,298
, ,	,,		-,	,,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Expenses Program Services:					
Oratorical contest scholarships program	189,500			189,500	190,500
CCDHH scholarships program	44,634	_	_	44,634	40,000
Essay contest scholarships program	96,200	_	_	96,200	100,000
Youth Club programs	85,000		_	85,000	90,000
Club grant program (Note 9)	297,750	_	_	297,750	330,776
Charitable, literary and educational	231,100			231,130	550,770
programs	463,213	_	_	463,213	583,416
Total Program Services	1,176,297	_	_	1,176,297	1,334,692
	, , ,				
Supporting Activities:	150 490			150 400	179 450
Management and general	158,436	_	_	158,436	173,459
Fundraising	129,093			129,093	119,861
Total Supporting Activities	287,529			287,529	293,320
Total Expenses	1,463,826			1,463,826	1,628,012
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets	(7,276)	206,149	123,976	322,849	346,286
Net Assets - Beginning Of Year	2,784	812,213	2,145,965	2,960,962	2,614,676
Net Assets - End Of Year	\$ (4,492)	\$ 1,018,362	\$ 2,269,941	\$ 3,283,811	\$ 2,960,962

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For The Year Ended September 30, 2014 (With Summarized Financial Information For The Year Ended September 30, 2013)

	2014	2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities		
Increase in net assets	\$ 322,849	\$ 346,286
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to		
net cash used in operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization	1,020	16,285
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes	(108,087)	(214,121)
Realized gains on investments	(109,277)	(15,969)
Unrealized gains on investments	(366, 162)	(597,810)
Decrease in cash value of life insurance	5,794	285
Change in value of charitable gift annuity obligations		
and beneficial interest in perpetual trust	(1,483)	12,823
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
(Increase) decrease in unconditional promises to give	(54, 149)	88,826
Decrease in due from Optimist International		
Foundation of Canada	10,000	10,000
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets	2,381	(3,584)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses	57,923	49,719
Decrease in contests and scholarships payable	(7,316)	(9,650)
Increase (decrease) in due to Optimist International	(95,249)	41,529
Increase (decrease) in due to Member Clubs	177,166	(46,355)
Increase (decrease) in grants payable	7,034	(6,574)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities	(157,556)	(328,310)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities		
Proceeds from sale of investments	506,681	464,122
Purchases of investments	(551,384)	(263, 126)
Payments (advances) on promissory note receivable	27,815	(32,865)
Purchases of property and equipment	(1,500)	
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities	(18,388)	168,131
Cash Flows From Financing Activities		
Payments on charitable gift annuity obligations	(34,226)	(18,891)
Cash received subject to charitable gift annuity obligations	6,097	(10,031)
Proceeds from contributions restricted for investment in	0,001	
	149,287	01 111
Permanent endowment Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities	121,158	$\frac{91,111}{72,220}$
Net Cash Flovided by Financing Activities	121,156	12,220
Net Decrease In Cash	(54,786)	(87,959)
Cash - Beginning Of Year	234,251	322,210
Cash - End Of Year	\$ 179,465	\$ 234,251

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2014

1. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis Of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements of Optimist International Foundation (the Foundation) have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis Of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205, *Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit-Organizations*. Under ASC 958-205, the Foundation is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets.

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Foundation's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013, from which the summarized information was derived.

Use Of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Investments And Assets Restricted For Permanent Investment

Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices of major securities exchanges. Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in the statement of financial position. Gains and losses on investments are determined on a specific cost identification method. Unrealized gains and losses are determined based on year-end fair value fluctuations.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Donated investments are recorded at their fair values (based upon quotations or appraisals) at the date of the gift.

Receivables

Accounts receivable from related parties are stated at the amount that management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollected amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual balances. Those balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to the receivable.

Promises To Give

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as support in the period the promises are received. Conditional contributions are recognized as support when the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

The Foundation provides an allowance for uncollectible promises to give equal to the estimated collection losses that will be incurred in the collection of all unconditional promises to give. The estimated losses are based on a review of the current status of the existing promises to give.

Property And Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Computer equipment and software 3 - 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 - 15 years
Leasehold improvements 5 - 15 years

Artwork is carried at cost.

Restricted And Unrestricted Revenue And Support

Gifts of cash and other assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating support if the gifts are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Description Of Program Services And Supporting Activities

The following program services and supporting activities are included in the accompanying financial statements:

Oratorical Contest Scholarships Program

An annual speech competition with over 18,800 entrants. Scholarships are awarded in district level contests in the United States.

Communications Contest For The Deaf And Hard Of Hearing Scholarships Program (CCDHH)

A program that awards scholarships to district winners. Scholarships are awarded to each individual winner and are payable upon receipt of the correct paperwork from an institution of higher learning.

Essay Contest Scholarships Program

An annual competition for high school students with over 7,600 entrants. Scholarships are awarded and attendance sponsored at seminars for district winners.

Youth Club Programs

Scholarships to support Youth Club activities.

Club Grant Program

Grants for member clubs utilized for charitable, literary and educational programs at the direction of the Foundation in conjunction with support from the member clubs.

Charitable, Literary And Educational Programs

Grants for magazine/articles, seminars/training, grant writing program, international initiatives and matching grants.

Management And General

Includes the functions necessary to maintain an adequate working environment, provide coordination of the Foundation's program strategy and manage the financial and budgetary responsibilities of the Foundation.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Fundraising

Provides the structure necessary to encourage and secure private financial support from individuals, clubs and other foundations.

Expense Allocation

The costs associated with providing the Foundation activities have been summarized on a functional basis. Certain of these expenses represent costs associated with multiple activities and require allocation among the programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are based on relevant factors that represent management's best estimate of the costs of providing such activities.

Tax Status

The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3) and a qualified public charity under Section 509(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and is, therefore, exempt from federal income taxes on related, exempt income. The Foundation's tax returns for tax years 2010 and later remain subject to examination by taxing authorities.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 24, 2015, the date which the financial statements were available for issue.

2. Operations

The Foundation, incorporated in February 1971, is a foundation and charitable corporation established for the general purpose of soliciting and receiving gifts, donations and bequests of money and property to be used for the furtherance of the charitable and educational efforts and activities of Optimist International. The Foundation also acts as a custodian and investment manager for various funds that have been donated to or accumulated by Optimist International Clubs. The Foundation supports Optimist International programs.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Unconditional Promises To Give

Unconditional promises to give are included in the financial statements as assets and support of the appropriate net asset category.

Unconditional promises to give consist of the following:

Scholarships and other	\$ 94,593
Endowment	193,800
	288,393
Less: Allowance	35,998
	\$ 252,395

The promises to give are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Promises to give - short term	\$ 46,074
Promises to give	12,521
Assets restricted for permanent	
investment (Note 4)	 193,800
	\$ 252,395

These promises to give, net of the allowance, are expected to be collected in the following periods:

In one year or less	\$ $115,\!556$
Between one and five years	136,839
	\$ 252,395

4. Investments

Investments are carried at fair value and consist of the following asset categories held in thirteen separate mutual funds:

Growth	\$ 1,791,387
Growth and income	1,351,188
Equities - income	916,655
Balanced	556,905
Fixed income	1,005,601
Money market fund	43,624_
	\$ 5,665,360

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Investments are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Investments	\$ 3,759,252
Assets restricted for permanent	
investment	1,906,108
	\$ 5,665,360

Assets restricted for permanent endowment on the statement of financial position also include promises to give in the amount of \$193,800 (Note 3).

Investments are carried at fair value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. For the year ended September 30, 2014, unrealized gains of \$366,162 were recorded to adjust the investments to fair value.

The Foundation records certain assets and liabilities at fair value, pursuant to the provisions of ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. In accordance with ASC 820, the major categories of financial assets and liabilities must be measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the year ended September 30, 2014 using quoted prices in active markets (Level 1); significant observable inputs for similar assets and liabilities (Level 2); and significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). The investments in money market funds and mutual funds held by the Foundation at September 30, 2014 and reported at their respective fair values above are considered Level 1 investments.

5. Property And Equipment

Property and equipment consist of:

Computer equipment and software	\$ 221,511
Furniture and fixtures	39,569
Leasehold improvements	10,993
Artwork	26,750
	298,823
Less: Accumulated depreciation and	
amortization	268,260
	\$ 30,563

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to \$1,020 for the year ended September 30, 2014.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

6. Promissory Note Receivable

On April 1, 2008, the Foundation entered into a promissory note agreement with Optimist International, a related party (Note 9), for the purpose of funding Optimist International's defined benefit pension plan. The promissory note, which is secured by a deed of trust and security agreement on Optimist International's office building in St. Louis, Missouri, had an original principal balance of \$730,000 and an interest rate of 6.97%. Commencing on December 31, 2008 and on each December 31 thereafter, the interest rate for the calendar year will be adjusted to equal the U.S. Aggregate Index for a 12-month period as published by a public source (5.00% effective December 31, 2013). The promissory note does not have a prepayment penalty. As of September 30, 2014, the promissory note has an outstanding balance of \$586,674 and is due in March 2029.

The future minimum principal payments on the promissory note are as follows:

Year	Amoun	Amount	
2015	\$ 28,27	'3	
2016	29,72	0	
2017	31,24	0	
2018	32,83	8	
2019	34,51	.8	
Thereafter	430,08	55_	
	\$ 586,67	4	

For the year ended September 30, 2014, total interest income related to the promissory note receivable amounted to \$27,707, which is included in interest and dividends on the statement of activities.

Given the nature of the related party relationship, management has been able to estimate at September 30, 2014 that this Promissory Note will be collected in full in the future. The Foundation does not anticipate that payments on this promissory note will be delinquent in the future, and thereby, does not have a policy on determining the past due status of the promissory note, nor does it have a policy on placing the promissory note on nonaccrual status.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

7. Split Interest Agreements

The Foundation has been named as the sole beneficiary of a perpetual trust that was established in 1978. The trust assets are held and administered by an independent financial institution trustee, in accordance with the donor's intent. For the year ended September 30, 2014, the Foundation recorded an increase in the value of the beneficial interest in perpetual trust of \$15,889.

8. Net Assets And Endowments

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following:

Childhood Cancer Campaign	\$	398,484
Scholarships/promises to give		34,000
Accumulated Restricted Endowment		
Earnings		554,602
JOOI Activities		30,131
Other		645
Club Grant Program		500
	Φ.	1 010 000
	<u> </u>	1,018,362

Net assets released from restrictions consist of the following:

Childhood Cancer Campaign	\$ 31,211
Club Grant Program	297,750
Scholarships and promises to give	82,999
Appropriation of Accumulated	
Restricted Endowment Earnings	66,545
	\$ 478,505

The Foundation's endowments consist of 46 donor-restricted endowments established for a variety of purposes and board-designated endowments. As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Interpretation Of Relevant Law

The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), as adopted by the State of Missouri in August 2009, as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment funds that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

- (1) The duration and preservation of the fund,
- (2) The purposes of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment funds,
- (3) General economic conditions,
- (4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation,
- (5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments,
- (6) Other resources of the Foundation, and
- (7) The investment policies of the Foundation.

Endowment Asset Composition By Type Of Fund As Of September 30, 2014:

			Temp	orarily	Per	manently	
	Unre	estricted	Res	tricted	В	Restricted	Total
Donor restricted endowment funds	\$	(22,192)	\$	554,602	\$	1,906,108	\$ 2,438,518
Board-designated quasi-endowment							
funds		181,513		_		_	181,513
	\$	159,321	\$	554,602	\$	1,906,108	\$ 2,620,031

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Changes In Endowment Assets For The Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014:

			Temporarily	Per	manently	
	Unr	estricted	Restricted	I	Restricted	Total
Endowment assets, beginning of year	\$	145,117	\$ 392,180	\$	1,756,821	\$ 2,294,118
Investment return		77,717	228,967		_	306,684
Payments on promises to give		_	_		75,000	75,000
Current year contributions		_	_		74,287	74,287
Appropriations		(63,513)	(66,545)			(130,058)
Endowment assets, end of year	\$	159,321	\$ 554,602	\$	1,906,108	\$ 2,620,031

Funds With Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature that are reported in unrestricted net assets are \$30,233 as of September 30, 2014. These deficiencies resulted from historical market fluctuations and guaranteed payout rates on specific funds regardless of investment returns.

Return Objectives And Risk Parameters

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Foundation must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s), as well as board-designated funds. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results favorable to returns of benchmarks comparable for each particular investment vehicle. Examples of such benchmarks include:

- S&P 500
- Russell 2000
- MSCI EAFE
- Barclay's Aggregate Bond
- Blend of indices

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Strategies Employed For Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity and bond mutual funds to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy And How The Investment Objectives Relate To Spending Policy

The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year five percent of each endowment fund's fair value (only for such funds for which the donor did not explicitly state a distribution percentage). In establishing this policy, the Foundation considered the long-term expected return on its endowments.

9. Related Party Transactions

Payments for certain administrative and operating expenses of the Foundation are made by Optimist International on a fully reimbursed basis. Payments for program service expenses, including youth club, scholarship awards, grants for the Childhood Cancer Campaign and charitable programs of the Foundation are also made by Optimist International on a fully reimbursed basis. At September 30, 2014, the Foundation recorded a liability of \$164,005 related to amounts due to Optimist International.

Payments for certain administrative and operating expenses of Optimist International Foundation of Canada were made by the Foundation in prior years. At September 30, 2014, amounts due to the Foundation from the Optimist International Foundation of Canada amounted to \$16,680.

The Foundation collects, holds and disburses funds on behalf of the Optimist International Member Clubs (the clubs). At September 30, 2014, there were 2,607 Optimist International Member Clubs. At September 30, 2014, the Foundation carried a liability of \$1,465,916 for the cumulative funds received in excess of disbursements for the Club Campaign Program. Earnings on the funds not yet disbursed to the clubs totaled \$431,771 at September 30, 2014, and are reported as a component of accounts payable and accrued expenses on the Foundation's statement of financial position.

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Under the Club Grant Program, the Foundation collected \$297,750 and disbursed \$297,750 for the year ended September 30, 2014. These amounts are reported as support and program expenses in the statement of activities.

Two former employees of the Foundation are participants in Optimist International's defined benefit plan. In an agreement with Optimist International, the Foundation agreed to fund a pro-rata portion (for the former employees of the Foundation as a percentage of the total participants in the defined benefit plan) of the contributions made to the plan by Optimist International on an annual basis. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the Foundation is only liable for the portion of the annual contribution as calculated by Optimist International and does not have any obligation, guaranty or warranty to fund any current or future deficits or shortfalls in the Plan. Conversely, the Foundation does not retain any residual rights to receive any excess assets remaining in the plan upon liquidation. As such, neither an asset nor a liability is recorded on the Foundation's statement of financial position related to this agreement with Optimist International. Total costs incurred for the year ended September 30, 2014 under this agreement were \$18,108.

10. Gift Annuities Payable

The Foundation maintains a charitable gift annuity program whereby individuals make gifts to the Foundation and receive an annuity payment for the remainder of their lives. At September 30, 2014, the Foundation had approximately \$497,000 of assets pursuant to charitable gift annuity agreements. Under the agreements, the Foundation pays the donors equal quarterly or monthly installments at an annual amount which approximated \$32,000 in 2014. The assets held for annuity are recorded by the Foundation at fair value. In calculating the present value of the payments to be made, discount rates ranging from 4.0 to 5.9 and life expectancies ranging from 10 to 25 years were assumed. At September 30, 2014, gift annuities payable totaled \$255,639. For the year ended September 30, 2014, net unrealized gains of \$56,001 were recorded on the annuity assets.



RubinBrown LLP
Certified Public Accountants
& Business Consultants

One North Brentwood Saint Louis, MO 63105

T 314.290.3300 F 314.290.3400

W rubinbrown.com
E info@rubinbrown.com

Independent Auditors' Report On Supplementary Information

Board of Directors Optimist International Foundation St. Louis, Missouri

We have audited the financial statements of Optimist International Foundation as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014 and our report thereon dated January 24, 2015, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears on pages 1 and 2. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of program services expenses, schedule of management and general expenses and schedule of fundraising expenses, which are the responsibility of management, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

January 24, 2015

RulinBrown LLP



SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM SERVICES EXPENSES

	For The Years				
	Ended September 30,				
		2014		2013	
Oratorical Contest Scholarships Program					
Scholarships	\$	189,500	\$	190,500	
CCDHH Scholarships Program					
Scholarships Scholarships		44,634		40,000	
•		,		,	
Essay Contest Scholarships Program					
Scholarships		96,200		100,000	
Youth Club Programs					
Scholarships and programs		85,000		90,000	
Club Grant Program					
Grants		297,750		330,776	
OT CATALOG		201,100		330,113	
Charitable, Literary And Educational Programs					
Childhood cancer grant		31,211		128,955	
Club Campaign funds interest		62,480		33,600	
Donor restricted grants		60,547		102,814	
International convention		14,238		8,049	
Magazine publication		10,000		10,000	
Depreciation, amortization and software maintenance		7,420		15,881	
Other programs		51,705		48,689	
Volunteer activities		20,590		28,998	
Planned giving		6,104		8,568	
Allocated staff time and related costs		198,918		197,862	
Total Charitable, Literary And Educational Programs		463,213		583,416	
	\$	1,176,297	\$	1,334,692	

SCHEDULE OF MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES

	For The Years				
	En	ded Septe	embe	r 30,	
		2014		2013	
Volunteer Activities					
Special representatives seminar	\$	8,145	\$	14,714	
Board of Directors		8,917		10,085	
Executive Director		3,528		4,198	
Allocated staff time and related costs		24,865		22,057	
Total Volunteer Activities		45,455		51,054	
International Conventions					
Convention operations		11,392		6,015	
Staff travel and lodging		2,845		2,034	
Allocated staff time and related costs		16,844		14,272	
Total International Conventions		31,081		22,321	
Other Management And General					
Allocated staff time and related costs		29,677		32,436	
Bad debt expense		· —		18,131	
Bank charges		13,154		11,794	
Depreciation, amortization and software maintenance		1,885		4,634	
Dues, subscriptions and publications		4,761		1,705	
Gain on foreign currency transactions		955		907	
Filing fees - federal and state		4,100		4,259	
Miscellaneous expense		10,524		12,420	
Professional services		13,835		11,540	
Staff training		199		291	
Telephone		2,810		1,967	
Total Other Management And General	_	81,900		100,084	
	\$	158,436	\$	173,459	

SCHEDULE OF FUNDRAISING EXPENSES

	E	For The Years Ended September 30,				
		2014		2013		
Awards And Recognition	'					
Donor awards	\$	16,384	\$	11,684		
Engraving		615		732		
Postage and shipping		12,611		10,307		
Allocated staff time and related costs		20,052		29,193		
Total Awards And Recognition		49,662		51,916		
Special Programs						
Collectors' plates/prints		35,051		20,483		
Planned Giving Programs		2,034		3,504		
Allocated staff time and related costs		16,846		15,571		
Total Special Programs		53,931		39,558		
Other Fundraising						
Depreciation, amortization and software maintenance		2,663		5,519		
Insurance premiums		508		508		
Office supplies		2,125		5,082		
Printing		6,569		4,304		
Allocated staff time and related costs		13,635		12,974		
Total Other Fundraising	•	25,500		28,387		
	\$	129,093	\$	119,861		